
 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of February 7
th

, 2012 

Town of Eliot 
REGULAR PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES February 7th, 2012 7PM 

 
ITEM 1 - ROLL CALL  

Present: Present: Steve Beckert – Chairman, Jeff Duncan – Vice Chairman, 
Dennis Lentz, and Greg Whalen - Alternative. 

 
 Absent: Larry Bouchard. 
 
Steve Beckert appointed Greg Whalen as a voting member for this meeting.  
 
ITEM 2 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
ITEM 3 – MOMENT OF SILENCE 
ITEM 4 - REVIEW AND APPROVE MINUTES AND INVOICES AS NEEDED 
 
MOTION: 
Dennis Lentz made the motion to approve the minutes of the October 4th, 2011 
Planning Board meeting, as written. 
Jeff Duncan seconded the motion. 
Vote: 2-0 (Greg Whalen abstained due to absence from the meeting), Chair 
concurs.  
 
ITEM 5 - REVIEW OF "NOTICE OF DECISION" LETTERS, AS NEEDED 
None. 
 
ITEM 6 - PUBLIC APPLICATIONS OR PLANNING BOARD BUSINESS TO BE 
CONSIDERED 
 

A. 10-minute public input session. 
 
Public input session opened. 
 
No comments. 
 
Public input session closed.  
 

B. Public hearing – and continued review of “Amendments to Chapter 44, 
Shoreland Zoning and Chapter 45, Zoning of the Municipal Code of 
Ordinances of the Town of Eliot, Maine, to prohibit the sale of fireworks in all 
zoning districts.”   
 

Steve Beckert explained that the proposed zoning ordinance amendment would prohibit 
the sale of fireworks as a land use in all zoning districts. He stated that the State of Maine 
recently adopted legislation to legalize the possession, sale and use of fireworks while 
allowing the municipalities to adopt their own ordinances regulating where they can be 
used or sold. He stated that in December the Town voted to adopt two ordinances that 
prohibit individuals from possessing, selling and using fireworks town-wide with the 
exception of permitted fireworks displays permitted by the Eliot Fire Chief. The adoption of 
the ordinance being discussed tonight would prohibit the sale of fireworks as a land use in 



 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of February 7
th

, 2012 2 

all zoning districts. He asked the Board if they had any comments before he opened the 
public hearing. 
 
The Board had no comments. 
 
Steve Beckert explained the rules of a public hearing. 
 
Public hearing opened. 
 
No comments. 
 
Public hearing closed.  
 
MOTION: 
Jeff Duncan made the motion to forward the proposed ordinance prohibiting the sale of 
fireworks as a land use to the Board of Selectmen for inclusion on the next available 
warrant. 
Dennis Lentz seconded the motion.  
 
Discussion: 
Greg Whalen stated that he noticed that §223-A.2 of the State statute states: 
“…Municipalities that prohibit or restrict the sale or use of consumer fireworks shall provide 
to the Office of the State Fire Marshal a copy of the relevant restriction or prohibition within 
60 days of adoption…” He stated that he just wanted to point that out in case it hadn’t 
already been noticed.  
 
Vote: 3-0, Chair concurs. 
 

C. Application for a Shoreland Zoning permit to construct a 4’ x 
60’ fixed pier with a 3’ x 55’ ramp, 6’ x 33’ landing float and 10’ 
x 20’ main float at 21 Old Cottage Lane. Owner/applicant is 
Gretchen Stein (mailing address: 21 Old Cottage Lane, Eliot, 
ME  03903). Property can be identified as Map 50/Lot 3 and is 
located in the Limited Residential Shoreland zoning district. 
(PB11-24) 

 
Zachary Taylor of Riverside & Pickering Marine represented the applicant. He 
stated that the property owner proposes to construct a 4’ x 60’ residential pier, a 
3’ x 55’ ramp, and a 6’ x 33’ landing float leading to a 10’ x 20’ main float. He 
stated that this pier would be located between two abutting piers and would 
project out into the channel the same distance as the existing structures. He 
stated that the pier was designed to minimize the impact and its length reduced 
as much as structurally feasible. The ramp and float, which comprise the majority 
of the total length, will be removed during the winter months. He also noted that 
to further reduce the potential impacts to the water and extend the life of the 
structure, the pilings and cross bracing for the pier would be constructed using 
fiberglass components instead of pressure treated yellow pine. 
 
Dennis Lentz asked if the stairway shown on the plans was existing or proposed. 
 



 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of February 7
th

, 2012 3 

Zachary Taylor stated that the stairs were existing and that no changes were 
proposed to them.  
 
Steve Beckert stated that the riparian setbacks were more than adequate and 
that the abutting piers were 109’ and 143’ from the proposed structure. He asked 
if the Board had any additional questions for the applicant.  
 
The Board had no additional questions for the applicant.  
 
MOTION: 
Jeff Duncan made the motion to accept the application for Gretchen Stein as 
complete and to schedule the public hearing on February 21st.  
Greg Whalen seconded the motion. 
Vote: 3-0, Chair concurs. 
 
Steve Beckert explained the 30-day appeal procedure. 
 

D. Application for Site Plan Review to establish an animal 
hospital at 1034 Goodwin Rd. Applicant is Dr. Christopher Lee 
(mailing address: 6 Quarry Dr., South Berwick, ME 03908). 
Owner is 392 Goodwin Road, LLC (mailing address: 14 Nature 
Ln., Rochester, NH 03867). Property can be identified as Map 
101/Lot 20-1 and is located in the Rural zoning district. (PB12-
01) 

 
Dr. Christopher Lee, applicant, stated that he owned and operated the South 
Berwick Veterinary Hospital for about 20 years until he sold it in 2007. He stated 
that he’s worked in area veterinary practices since that time and is now ready to 
start his own practice again. He explained that the property at 1034 Goodwin 
Road, on the corner of Route 236, was occupied by Wentworth Douglass 
Hospital medical offices for six years until they relocated so the interior of the 
building would not need to be changed. He stated that he proposes to provide 
medical and surgical care of small animals only and that there would be no 
grooming, boarding or day care provided.  
 
Jeff Duncan asked what would happen if an animal that had surgery needed 
overnight medical care.   
 
Dr. Lee stated that the policy of the animal hospital would be that no overnight 
care is offered, however, if there is ever an instance when this is required, the 
animal would be referred to a facility that does provide overnight care, such as an 
emergency clinic.  
 
Greg Whalen asked what the hours of operation would be. 
 
Dr. Lee stated that the hours of operation would be Monday – Friday 7:30 AM – 
6:00 PM and 8:00 AM - 12:00 PM on Saturdays. 
 
Steve Beckert stated that the Table of Land Uses (Sec. 45-290) shows that 
‘Veterinary hospitals’ are prohibited in all zones except the Commercial/Industrial 



 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of February 7
th

, 2012 4 

zone and that the applicant applied as a ‘Use similar to a professional office,’ 
which is allowed in the Rural zone if the property abuts Route 236. He stated that 
the Board will need to decide whether or not they agree that the proposed use is 
similar to a professional office or if it’s a ‘veterinary hospital’.  
 
Kate Pelletier stated the zoning ordinance allows some commercial uses in the 
Rural zone when the property abuts 236 such as take-out restaurants, retail 
stores, auto repair garages, business offices, and professional offices. She 
stated that while it seems logical that a veterinary hospital should be allowed 
under the same circumstances, the zoning ordinance expressly prohibits them.  
 
Greg Whalen asked if there was a definition of ‘Veterinary hospital’ in the code. 
 
Kate Pelletier stated that there was not, nor was there a definition of 
‘Professional office.’ She stated that historically speaking, the Town has always 
considered any type of medical office as a ‘Professional office’, but since 
‘Veterinary hospitals’ are listed in the Table of Land Uses and expressly 
prohibited, a court of law would likely overturn the approval on appeal should it 
ever be challenged.  
 
Jeff Duncan asked if the applicant had considered applying for a variance. 
 
Dr. Lee stated that he may consider applying for a variance if the Planning Board 
is unable to approve the application.  
 
Greg Whalen asked Kate Pelletier if she knew why the ordinance prohibited the 
use in that location. 
 
Kate Pelletier stated that she wasn’t aware of a specific reason why it was 
excluded and that she would like to draft an ordinance amendment that would 
allow veterinary hospitals in the Rural and Suburban zones if the property abuts 
Route 236. 
 
Steve Beckert stated that he’d be agreeable to that. He stated that it was his 
opinion that veterinary hospitals are similar in intensity to professional offices, 
retail stores, and restaurants, which are already allowed in the Rural and 
Suburban zones, so it would be logical to also allow veterinary hospitals there 
also. 
 
The Board agreed to proceed with an ordinance amendment to allow veterinary 
hospitals in the Rural and Suburban zoning districts when the property abuts 
Route 236.  
 
Steve Beckert asked the Board how they’d like to proceed with the application. 
 
Jeff Duncan stated that he didn’t feel comfortable approving it as a ‘use similar to 
a professional office’ when ‘veterinary hospitals’ are listed in the Table of Land 
Uses and clearly not allowed. 
 
Greg Whalen and Dennis Lentz agreed. 



 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of February 7
th

, 2012 5 

 
 
MOTION: 
Jeff Duncan made the motion to table the application for Dr. Christopher Lee 
pending the granting of a use variance by the Board of Appeals to allow a 
“Veterinary hospital” in the Rural zone. 
Greg Whalen seconded the motion. 
Vote: 3-0, Chair concurs. 
 
Steve Beckert explained the 30-day appeal procedure.  
 

E. Continued review and discussion of proposed amendments to 
Chapter 37 – Streets and Sidewalks (Draft 6) with Joel Moulton. 

 
Kate Pelletier stated that Joel Moulton, Public Works Director, had a prior commitment and 
was able to attend tonight but that she and Joel had  worked together to prepare the 
memo dated February 6th in response to the code enforcement officer’s comments on the 
proposed amendments to Chapter 37.  
 
The Board discussed the memo and agreed to leave the proposed amendments to 
Chapter 37, as written, based on input from the Public Works Director. 
 
MOTION: 
Dennis Lentz made the motion to schedule the public hearing for the proposed 
amendments to Chapter 37 (Streets and Sidewalks) for February 21st. 
Greg Whalen seconded the motion. 
Vote: 3-0, Chair concurs.  
 
ITEM 7 - ACTION ITEM LIST  
ITEM 8 – CORRESPONDENCE, OTHER AS NEEDED 
ITEM 9 - SET AGENDA AND DATE FOR NEXT MEETNG 
The next regular Planning Board meeting was scheduled for February 21st, 2012. 
 
ITEM 10 – ADJOURN 
MOTION: 
Dennis Lentz made the motion to adjourn at 7:55 PM. 
Jeff Duncan seconded the motion. 
Vote: 3-0, Chair concurs.  

_____________________________ 
                                                                          Stephen Beckert, Chairman 

 
        Date approved: _______________ 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
______________________________ 
Kate Pelletier, Recording Secretary 


